
Reoular Meeting
Citi natt Council Chambers
fast side of Monte Verde
between Ocean & 7ih

Call to Order and Roll Call

Pledqe of Alleqiance

Appearances
Thank you for attending the meeting' flVone yi:hilg l-::ddress 

the Commission on matters

not on the agenda, [rt"*itr'.rin *re juiisOiiion-of *re.Com=-ssion' may do so now Please state

the matter on which you wish to speak. Matters not appeari.g "h 
th; commission's agenda will

not receive action atirris meeting but mav be referred io statr"tor a future meeting' Presentations

wiu be limited to three minutes, or r. "riiJul;;";;iil 
co*'issiol P"t::T.are not required

to give their name o-r-JJr".*, 
'nut 

it i, r..,ljpir-r ioi.ri"rr."rs to siate their name in order that the

Secretary maY identifY them'

Consent Agenda

l.ApprovalofMinutesoftheNovemberlA'2015Meeting(pp1-3)

Orders of Business

New Business---a :-'*fi:::?{i::113.?*r,,"r or rees in the amount or 94052 and ron'vard a

recommendation to the citv'born"il regarding.ih;6t^ Annual Run in the Name of

Love5Kand2KeventtobLrretdJunetg,2016(pp5-57)
4. Review communiiy Activities "no 

crttrral commission Rules of Procedure and

provide direction as necessary (pp 58 - 65)

Qld Business --f, ^.,,r,,rar /^nmrniqqinn oarlicioation in the 2016 City
5'DiscussCommunityActivitiesandCulturalCommissionparticipatit

Centennial celebrationr, ,n"Jplouioe Jirection as necessary (pp' 66 - 68)

TuesdaY
January 12,2016

9:30 a.m.

Donna Jett, Chair
Grace Lee
Stacy Meheen
Judy Refuerzo
BobbY Richards

Reporls from the Chair and Commissioners

6. City Councll oeclslorl Isgdrurrrv rvrvr

request
7. V"tOrt review of 2016 Special Events

. Carmel Ribbon Cutting i Centennial Launch, Friday, Friday, January 8, Ocean

. l;fiX;"uar Breakfast with the Bunny and Bunnyrand, saturday, March 26,

Devendorf Park
. Monterey Vintners winemakers' celebration, Saturday, May 7, Dolores between

oceanandTthAvenues,z,nnvenuebetweenDoloresandSanCarlos
. 36th Annual Surfabout Contest' May 6'7'8' Carmel Beach

ansion and fee waiver



. 2z3tdAnnual carmelArt Festival, May 12-15, Mission between ocean and 6th

o Memorial Day Ceremony, Monday, May 30' 11.00 am' Devendorf Park

. 6th Annual Run in the Nime of Love, Sinday, June 19, 8:00 am, Race Start on

San Carlos Street - Finish at Del Mar'
. l4thAnnual +th oi Juty Celebration, Monday, July 4,12:00 pm, Devendorf Park

. 1Oth Annual Concours on the Avenue, Tueiday, August 9, various locations and

10.

11.

Devendorf Park
. 19th Annual Pebble Beach Tour d'Elegance,

Ocean Avenue and Devendorf Park
Thursday, August 11, 11:30 am

. Carmel Chamber of Commerce Refreshment
Carlos between Ocean and 6th

Lounge, ThursdaY, August 1 1, San

.CarmelHighSchoolHomecomingParade'TB?'OceanAvenue

. 55th Annuat Sandcastle Contest, TBD, Carmel Beach

. 8th Annual Carmel lnternational Film Festival , Wednesday - Sunday' October 19-

22 - various locations
. 100th city Birthday Party and Parade, saturday, october 29
. znd Annual Pumpkin Roll, TBD, Ocean Avenue
.VeteransDayCeremony,Friday,Novemberll'DevendorfPark
. 46th Annual iomecrafteis'Marlietplace., Saturday, November 19, 9:00 am to

3:00 Pm - Sunset Center North Lot
o Tree Lighting, Friday, December 2,4:30 pm _ ocean Avenue and Devendorf

Park.

Future Agenda ltems

Adjournment

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING

t, Janet Bombard, Library and Community Activities Director for the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY, under penalty oi per1ury under the laws of the State of California, that

the foregoing notice was posted at the carmet-oy-the-Sea City Hallbulletinboard, posted at the

Harrison Memorial Library on Ocean and Lincoln Avenues and the Carmel Post Office and

distributed to members of the media on January 8,2016'

Dated this 8th day of January, 2016, at the hour of 12:00 p'm'

munitv Activities Director



MINUTES
CoMMUNITYACTIVITIES&cULTURALcoMMISSIoN

CITY OF CARM EL-BY-TH E-SEA

REGULAR MEETING, November 10, 2Ot5

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

STAFF PRESENT:

Commissioners: Jett, Lee, Meheen, Richards' Refuezo

None

Janet Bombard, Library and Community Activities Director
Margi Perotti, Community Activities Coordinator

il.

il1.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Members of the ,rofiffiined commission Members in the Pledge of Allegiance'

EXTRAORDI NARY BUSI N ESS
Chairperson Jett intrZffinew Commissioner Grace Lee and welcomed her to the

Commission.

APPEARANCES
Michael Pyon appeared and said he represented 25 pickle ball players who would like to

have exclusive use of the tennis courts on Thursdays and-saturdays at 10:00 a'm' for

two hours. He would like to have the signs changeo to reflect the needs of the pickle

ball players.

steve Dallas welcomed Grace Lee and wanted to thank staff and the commission for

the successfut Pumpkin nott event. He would like the 2016 pumpkin roll to be a

separate event.

commissioner Meheen corrected the spelling of Di Girolamo. lt was moved by Meheen

and seconded by Refuezo to approve the minutes as corrected. The motion was

approved with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Jett, Meheen, Richards, Refuerzo
NOES: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: Lee

ORDERS OF BUSINESS

A. Consider a request from the Monterey county Vintners and make a
recommendation to the city council regarding requests to: 1) expand the
Winemakers Celebration event venue io inctuOe part of 7th Street, and 2) be granted

a waiver of fees for the event.

lv.

V

vl.



Scott Caraccioli and Kim Stemler appeared and discussed the expansion oJ lhe event'

layout and flow of peOestrian traffic, volunteers and addressed questions of the

commission. They are anticipating the sale of approximately 1200 tickets' No other

appearances. Commissioner'Richirds encouraged the event organizers to make this

eventprofitabletonothavetorequestafeewaiverfornextyear.

Following discussion, it was moved by commissioner Richards and seconded by

commissioner Meheen to send a recommend to the city council to approve the

expansion of the event and the fee waiver for calendar year 2016' The motion carried

by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Lee, Meheen, Richards, Refuerzo' Jett
NOES: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None

B. Consider community Activities and cultural commission participation in the 2016

City Centenniar ceretrations and fonruard a budget request to the City Council for

funding.

No public appearances. Following discussion, it was moved by chairperson Jett and

seconded by Commissioner Meheen to send a request to the City Councilto have a

placeholder of approximately $2000.00 in addition to the cost of the banner (cost of

banners is currenily unknown) to be able to participate in the Centennial of a yet to

be determined activity or dispiay. The motion carried by the following roll call vote:

AYES. Lee, Meheen, Richards, Refuerzo' Jett
NOES: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None

Chairperson Jett commented on the groups that came from out of the area to participate

in the pumpkin roll. she recommended that the event be for only two hours next year'

ln addition, she extended an invitation to attend the 90th Birthday of the Carmel

Women's Club. The date is December 6th'

Commissloner Meheen commented on the lanterns that are for sale for $35'00 at the

Carmel Visitors Center. She thought it was a great idea to start the celebration of the

Centennial.

vlll. ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM STAFF - receive and discuss reports, provide direction as

necessary.

Staff member Bombard informed the Commission that Eagle Scout Michael Doyle has

obtained a permit to perform minor earth work and construction of a level parking pad at

the Scout House.

staff member Bombard stated the City has hired a consultant to look at all fees including

Vista Lobos fees. Once this report is complete it will be fonrvarded to the City Council for

action.

vil.



tx.

x.

The use of the north parking lot for the Sunset Center Gala was approved by the City

Council.

A. Review of 2015 Special Event Permits

staff members perotti and Bombard gave verbal reviews of the special events and

addressed questions from the Commission. The Commission would like to consider

moving the city Birthday lunch to Devendorf Park, and also better distribution of food'

Possibly a shorter roll for the pumpkins, and an exit route for the rollers'

Director Bombard asked the Commissioners for volunteer help with Homecrafters'

Marketplace. Richards, Meheen, Rufurezo volunteered to be on site at 5:15 a'm''

SaturdaY Nov. 21 ,2015.
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Election of Officers and ongoing Centennial Status'

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the commission, chair Jett adjourned

the meeting at 10.12 a.m.

Respectf ullY subm itted,

Margi Perotti, Community Activities Coordinator

Approved by:

Donna Jett, Chair



COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES AND CULTURAL COMMISSION

Staff RePort

JanuarY 12,2016

To:

From:

Subject:

Community Activities and Cultural Commissioners

Janet Bombard, Library and Community Activities Director

Annual Election of Officers

on Rules of Procedure' the

Commission elects a new Chair and Vice-Chair'

The process, according to the Rules of Procedure' is as follows:

C. Officers

1. Selection

a. A Chair and Vice-chair shall be elected annually from among the commission's

membership at the beginning of the January meeting to serve at the pleasure of

the Commission

b. The elections process commences with individual Commissioners nominating

candidates until a motion is made, seconded and approved to close nominations'

At the conclusion of any discussion, the roll is called alphabetically and each

commissioner votes for one of the nominated candidates until one is elected by

simple majority. The newly elected or reelected chairman takes the chair's seat

and repeats this process for the Vice Chair'

c. The Vice-Chair shall succeed the Chair if helshe vacated his/her office before

his/her term is completed, the Vice-chair to serve the unexpired term of the

vacated office. A new Vice Chair shall be elected at the next regular meeting'

d. ln the absence of the Chair and Vice-Chair, any other member shall call the

commission to order, whereupon a chair shall be elected from the members

present to Preside.

e. The terms of office of the Chair and Vice-Chair shall not exceed two (2)

consecutive terms.

The Vice-chair position, which was filled by former commissioner Downing, is currently vacant'



CoMMUNITYACTIVITIESANDCULTURALCoMMISSIoN

Staff RePort

January 12,2016

To:

From:

Subject:

Community Activities and Cultural Commissioners

Janet Bombard, Library and community Activities Director

consider a request for a waiver of fees in the amount of $4052 and fonrvard a

recommendation to the city council regarding the 6th Annual Run in the Name

of Love 5K and 2K event to be held June 19, 2016

ANALYSIS/DISCUSSION:
The sixth annual Run in the Name of Love 5K and 2K event is scheduled to take place on sunday,

June 1 g,2016. Approximately 1,ooo people are expected to participate.

The run/walk course is the same as rast year, with the event beginning at sunset center and finishing

in the Del Mar parking lot at the foot of ocean Avenue. ln 2015, event organizers secured a S-year

Coastal Devetopmeni Permit from the City Planning and Building Department to close the Del Mar

Parking lot.

Event organizer susan Love, Director of the Just Run Program, is requesting a waiver of eligible event

fees. Because there are no proposed changes to this year's event, fees which are eligible to be

waived will remain the same as last year: $4052'

There are several issues that the commission will want to consider when formulating a

recommendation to the city council with respect to this fee waiver request, the most compelling of

which is the fact that all but $3,150 of the city's annual budget for fee waivers ($27,500) has been

allocated to other events this fiscal year. Run in the Name of Love's fee waiver request in the amount

of $4052 exceeds the amount remaining in the budget. ln addition, the commission will be considering

a fee waiver request from another organization at the February 2016 meeting'

city policy c12-02 provides guidelines for special event fee waivers. Policy considerations applicable

to this request are as follows:

o The number of years for which an organization will be eligible for ongoing waivers of

fees for the same event shall be no *ore than three years from the inception of the

event. Run in the Name of Love has received an annual fee waiver from the City since

2012.
o charitable contributions will be made to charitable organizations within the 93921 zip

code area. The beneficiary of the event, Just Run, is not in the 939212ip code area'
The parent organization, aig Sur lnternational Marathon, does contribute to charities in

tne SjSgZt arei code; howeirer, the Run in the Name of Love event does not'
o priority will be given to organizations that provide educational and/or community

progrrrr and 6vents thaiare open to the general public free of charge.

The Community Activities and Cultural Commission considered Run in the Name of Love's 2015 fee

waiver request, and made the following recommendation to the city council: "consider the fee waiver



request even though it is not consistent with the fee waiver poricy". The city council granted the fee

*riu", on the basis of the CA&CC's recommendation'

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment 1: Special Event Application (pp' 7 - 49)

Attachment 2: Documentation required for a fee waiver, submitted by event organizer (pp' 37 - 50)

Attachment 3: Estimated 2016 Run in the Name of Love event fees (p' 51)

Attachment 4: City Council Policy C12-02, Event Fee Waivers (p' 52)

Attachment 5: Additional documents submitted by event organizer (pp' 53 - 57)



t? i

EVENT DESCRIPTION
of Carmel- cial Event Permit A

DATE oF REQUEST: L2/2U7s

DATE OF EVENT: 6/1911-6

EVENT ORGANTZER' Big Sur lnternational Marathon' Susan Love Race Director

EVENTTYPE: X Athletics/Recreation
I rxnlbits/Rrt
E Festival/Celebration

EVENT TITLE: Run in the Name of Love

n Parade/Procession/March
n other:

EVENT DESCRIPTION:
Be as specific and detailed as possible. lnclude ALL equipment to be utilized for the "'"i-tli,l'11'11T""'tables' 

chairs'

;,,d;;;;."ni,p,op',generatorS,etC.AttaCh,dpageifneeded.
Thesixthannual RunintheNameof Loveiscomposedof a5Krunanda2Kwalk. Therun/walkwill beginat

carmel-by-the-sea's sunset center on san carlos and end on scenic Road at

Ocean Avenue. Dogs will be permitted in the Walk' Upon approval' the

Event will be held on June 1gth, 2016. The 5K, with an expected number of 800 participants, will begin at 8:30

AM and the 2K, with an expected numberof 200 participants, willbegin at8:40AM. The finish celebration

(awards, raffle, and refreshments) will be located in Del Mar Parking Lot' set-up of the announcer platform'

tables, port-potties, fencing, and tents begins at approximately 4:30 AM' (Continued on attached page)

ls this an annual event? XYes

Total Anticipated Attendance:

I trlo How many years have you been holding this event?

800 -1 000

5, 6th in 2016

APPLICANT AND SERVICE PROVIDER INFORMATION

EVENT APPLICANT NAME: susan Love

ADDRESS Big Sur Marathon P.O. Box 222620 Carmel, CA93922

TELEPHONE : 831'625-6226 EVENING: CELL: 831-818-3989 FAX: 83L-625-2119

List all professional event organizers, event service providers, or commercial fund-raisers hired by you that are

authorized to work on your behalf to plan, produce and/or manage your event. Attach additional names and

information on a separate page if needed. Note: Any person, firm or business conducting or carrying on any type of

business within the city must have a city of carmel-by-the-sea business license.

l-. SERVICE PROVIDER NAME: N/A

ADDRESS:

11

2



ln the past, the timing system and equiprnent have arrived for set-up at Sunset Center and at the

entranceof Del MarParkingLot,onScenic,at6:45AMAMtobeset-up. lfapprovedthisyear,at10:50
AM the race organizers and the Military from DLI will begin to dismantle the equipment, remove all

items, and insure that the parking lot is left in a pristine condition. The parking lot would be scheduled

to reopen to the Public at L1:30.

The proceeds would benefit the Big Sur lnternational Marathon's highly acclaimed youth fitness
program JUST RUN.

o
L



City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

TELEPHONE: DAY: EVENING; CELL: FAX:

CITY OF CARMEL.BY-THE.SEA BUSINESS LICENSE NUMBER:

2. SERVICE PROVIDER NAME:

ADDRESS:

TELEPHONE: DAY: EVENING: CELL FAX:

CITY OF CARMEL-BY.THE.SEA BUSINESS LICENSE NUMBER:

3. SERVICE PROVIDER NAME:

ADDRESS:

TELEPHONE DAY EVENING; CELL:

CITY OF CARMEL.BY-THE-SEA BUSINESS LICENSE NUMBER:

spEclAL EVENT LOCATION(S): please be as specific and detailed as possible. lnclude street names, intersections,

parks, andlor any other pertinent directional details.

The event begins in the courtyard of Sunset Center on San Carlos between 8th and 10th. The roads utilized by the

event will remain open; the specifics are on map attached. The finish awards ceremony and celebration will be held

in Del Mar Parking Lot.

FAX:

Number of HoursTo (lnclude AM/PM)From (lnclude AM/PM)
3.5 HoursSet up / Load in 6/tel16
2.25 HoursTime of event
.75 Hours11:30 AM10:45 AMTake down/ Load out

TOTAL HOURS REQUIRED

,.1



CityofCarmel-by-the-SeaSpecialEventPermitApplication

will this event require admission, entry, participation, or sponsorship fees? Xyes I ruo

ired admission, entry, participation and

The registration fee for the 5K race is 540.00
The registration fee for the 2K run/walk is S35.00

srrE PLAN/ ROUTE MAP
plication.lncludethefollowinginformation:

o An outline of the entire event venue, including the names of all streets, intersections, or areas that are part of

the venue. lf the event involves a moving route of any kind, indicate the direction of travel and all street or lane

closures.
o The location of all fencing, barriers and/or barricades. lndicate any removable fencing for emergency areas'

o The provisions for minimum twenty foot (20') emergency access lanes throughout the event venue'

The location of all portable restrooms, including accessible portable restrooms. Note: portable toilets are not

permitted on Scenic Avenue or the beach.
o The location of all stages, platforms, scaffolding, bleachers, grandstands, canopies, tents, booths, cooking areas'

trash containers and dumpsters, and other temporary structures.
o A detail or close-up of a food booth or cooking area configuration, including booth

cooking with flammable gases or barbecue grills.
o Generator locations and/or source of electricity. Note: generators are not permitted on the beach or Scenic

Avenue
o Placement of vehicles and/or trailers.
o Exit locations for outdoor events that are fenced andlor locations within tents and tent structures'

o The location of first aid facilities and ambulances if applicable.

o ldentification of all event components that meet accessibility standards'

identification of all vendors

RESERVING PARKING STALLS
t. List the exact location(s) of the parking stall(s)you wish to reserve.

and in the Del Mar parking lot cannot be reserved. Parking stalls on
Tuesday and Thursday of Car Week.

Please Note: parking stalls on Scenic Avenue
Ocean Avenue cannot be reserved on

Per city approval for the past five years, Run in the Name of Love has been granted permission

to use the Del Mar Parking lot from 5:00 AM to the completion of the even at l-1:30 at which

time the parking lot reopens for public use'

2. Please indicate specifically how the parking stall(s)will be used. Required

parking stalls at the east end of the closed Del Mar Parking Lot will be reserved for committee
members and the timing company who require access to the parking lot area,



5K Gourse

11iir.'1+

1i?:.&v+

,i:

- *cean I

i*.tnt.sJiarr;

F'

1]Lh *s*
:

iirtr4r.*,

\J
Uf,t:afi r\ttr

,a

?tur,
#ru*ci-ey.=tir.e"5ca

!i

rJ
,. JJ

!. r:

. -;.!

,'?
: t!;.*

: l-l]

i.'i

I

=
't

7:

...+ i'.,e j
,.- r rfi:{h-i.r .d'

fi
: tt;,-
t!:ri

,t,qr

iru

i1

;

::,
n
')ilnfa t ._ L rlCril .4 , .._.sF

,.* .p

J

- r!.t'
.*
3

i,:i
5

i;ts Jjf-J Xi$

- ...t,i1i{
PFI'
€r ;.*1
it
],
'+r.-t)

r -i{
:i r'

l4.



2K Gourse
a

f,:

a

T
G

*1* {+: '. i:: :,ri:...

carmel'hI'the'ssa "'

-
i;
.*

i9r :.r e ;"fi AJE
U,'

L]
B;
€

,1.*r-.-er-5*+i
{4 n:urt

t7,

L.r
a

I
T
a_.

a:,

f-l
)\*
,,}J

lr'.1

'.El: acL' ?.,

*
!,f.,

! ,ltj1A.,Jrl



o\
P
LN

H
(,]

tEEdOFl

==Hrl 'dE]FIF!Am
t! tdEit:HNJFlFl\oP

ro
Hrt

Ft
H

o
3
U]

N)

', {r:

ZZ
* lr:
+ ltl
*J

EI
HN
L-{z
Hz

U]
F:a
frH:r l4rF: El
Hfiz
P='; FlEo irl

tro
F]

u

iu6)i= o
.,o

U)
q)-
f



Del Mar Avenue

t€H:;-^rc- rG-

N

,\ -Tl
t- Z-EaoO_ -l-9, --n- +frt--1. (J 

-o,diT1

!Y aT{ e E)
. "Z--
r\Jv

I

I

I

o\olq
-oilfr
Sa- 6' r un
of a--{Tr
=n-oJ^-)-Zg- ^, U 

-o,X a.=a
- ry T604

o=

lE'-=l. -ll- or =l--r nllS'3 3l
lla ,, el

=:n-r,G-

rru -r G-f-tzl
. *- r ! := t:- 

-.x:il +gt l:8lx G=
ll Eal q
ll n I , l.

:llwat{ o \ /tl- %o', eou =ll-*'Tl , 
uc 

a" i
= 1r =Q I \ \B\\ -o
; rll i:l , flr ti ll iql ' \-e\\ ?

= lq ' \?\r &! tfi ' E\'i l€ \ \-r\
6 ls
= l=t4
: |rtH ltw-r: ",

-t/^- ' IqY\? '1Nf\ur II-rl
al t

d sa
o

-.{
NJ
at

!ul
imzoz
c)

C
--tu
om

o
a
=
rD:f
C(D

San Antonio
XX XX XE



RUNINTHENAMEoFLoVEPARKINGANDAccESSPIAN

ocean Avenue is crosed to regurar vehicurar traffic at san Antonio. At this intersection' we will

display a3, x ,rignirign A oi attachef map)that indicates there is pedestrian, access to the

beach on the sioewail-on the north side of ocean Avenue and through the parking lot that is

not part of the runner finish zone. This sign wiil arso indicate that pubric parking is available on

san Antonio north or south of ocean ,qvenue. rn addition, *1 *irr prace a duplicate sign at 8th

Avenue and San Antonio indicating tr,ri f"a.rtrian beach access is avairabre and that parking is

rocated on san Antonio (or other r"g.r p.*ing spots on rocar roads). Ail other beach accesses

along Scenic Avenue are not affected'

TheDelMarParkingLotwillreopenforregularpublicusebyll:30AM.



36" x 48" coroPlast signs
Qty.2

PEDESTRIAN
BEAOH
AOCESS

PARKING



lil-lI 3= itA-tI - - Ii Pg IlYnli'ill

\s
RR8,G

-T'1

4
T

_-zfr
-l-

sfr
e.=o=

L.lz
E

f
!

a
3
o,
=@o
a,L.t)l>l^lelr
t;

I

o\OI
c2
fioll4oJ F r LJ-t

^J -'-{--:iYn'JCu2
^.;.Jqd 5 rE

x*
=*aC

Del Mar Avenue

;:: = I o.*'l

sI{rEe
@.^ ' lg-
:.- tn.-.rr*rrr"^*, r 

==fP C-rrl--lc-
*-tZ-"G-tstt_) I IrG-] '_?,: ==' t)'- r! G-* *ll I i I I = H l;-ll =el l-l

@ 'to\O,,^\or \'a\-/ \o
o)G\

rf,zq
o
e.('

o

-v

Scenic Drive

E\q,

f.
3.
UOJr
1l rmins I la
6r

;mZozo
z6
om

_\

=l 
(,
o

d t7
o

--t
f'.Jn

!
Ll-fizr)z
OC
--tIg
rfl

o
r'\o
B,)
o
J
C(o

5at Anion,c ii

XX XX x[!



lntersections & Volunteers
5K/2K Course MaP

;i

Gr**!'hY'tite'5ea
r-';

- aifl A'

*,:ean A

Phone bY restrooms

Phone 8th & Scenic

C-tf7

1st runner 8:44
Last runner 9:30

Phone 13th &Scenlc

lst runner 8:4O
Last runner 9:1 5

runner 8:46
it runner 9:45

t-lt:*;-ln *r r q

7';r, *',r*
3i

! 4
o'!

:t
i. --t

-EY. t. -rj.]
;n
I.-4 -.:
I :r

sf Sta.-I s,go i
2K Staft 8:40 r'.1
+
=..:
45K<

2K --
Police

Manned
lntersection

Yi*
f -'1

+':{'-.,= * -+q

.-r q .*
rf !--+
= 

.: i -'!!

?_ ;:;*,,= :-:
a;

,lfi+*rg;,
Fktrt

a

.--:1

I
!

I

t

f{1 r.l' .E-
} jtr

,x

lst runngr.ffi[! Y*.6"'
Last ru&Arrffi?A,.- .

. FflFAI
,31:,

@
C

.:rlfff._: L- Lr,rEril 11,...-,v=-J j't' .}
!

..-r!'

*
.j.:,4i t lO,:; i-\/

-:'. I\r= t

x-LocATIoNoFPEDISTRIANBEACHAccESSANDPARKINGSIGNS



Telephone: Day:

Private Patrol Ope::l:: l:::::: *

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

Xy.t E ruo Wittyou be erecting any structures (stanchions, etc.) or placing any objects such as carpettng in

the road? lf yes, per Carmel Municipal Code 12.08.030, a temporary encroachment permit, which
will be issued in conjunction with your special event permit, is required. Attach a copy of a site

plan detailing all structures/objects and their placement in the road to this document.
There will be two inflatable omni/arch structures, one staged at the start line on San Carlos and 10th Avenue'

The second one will be located at the entrance to the parking lot on Scenic. They will not prevent/interfere with
road access.

f]Ves Xruo Willyou be using a valet service to manage parking in the reserved stalls? lf '

following information and attach a copy of the valet parking plan to this document

Company name: TelePhone number:

Address: CitY: State: ZiP:

lf applicable, have you hired a licensed professional security company to develop and manage your event's security

plan? EYes Xruo

Name of Security Company:
Address:

Evening: Cell: Fax:

Attach a copy of the security company's valid Private Patrol Operator's License issued by the State of California to your

a pplicatio n.

please describe your security plan including crowd control, internal security orvenue safety, or attach the plan to this

Attached

MEDICAL PLAN
Have you hired a licensed professional emergency medical services provider to develop and manage your event's

medical plan? E ves X ruo

Medical Services Provider Name:
Address:

Telephone: cvenrrB: Lerr: Fdx:

Describe your medical plan in the box on the following page. lnclude the communications plan, the number and certification
levels (MD, RD, Paramedic, EMT), and types of resources that will be at your event and the manner In which they will be

managed and deployed. lnclude location(s), hours of setup and dismantle of medical aid areas. You may attach the plan to this



1.

RuH tN rne Nlme or Love
ErueRceNcv Acrtoru Pllt't

Components of this Emergency Action Plan

1. Risk Assessment & Plan
2. Emergency Prevention & Training
3. EmergencY Plan Personnel
4. EmergencY EquiPment
5. Logistical Problems
6. Follow UP
7. Conclusion

1

Risk Assessment & Plan

BSIM Executive Director Doug Thurston, BSIM Asst Race Director chris Balog'

RNL Race Director Srrrn Loie and RNL Start Director/Legal Counsel Doug

oldfield met on May 1 5,2A14 to assess the risks of the event and create this

Emergency Action 
'ptan. Trre Emergency Action Plan will be circulated to the

otn"riir"itors for comment and action as needed'

EmergencY Prevention & Training

. lntersection volunteers will meet for training with CPD and event directors;

volunteer dutils will be clearly identified and discussed.

. lntersection volunteers will be placed at key intersections to assist

participants and control traffic'

, lntersection volunteers will be instructed to bring cell phones to the event'

.lntersectionvolunteerswillbegivenwrittencardswithcontactinformation
and emergency instructions tolt ) call 911 in the event of an emergency'

(2) block or redirect traffic as needed to protect any injured participant in

the roadw;y 6 .rtt tn" roving EMT for assistance and (4) do not move

any injured participant who is ;nconscious or may have a neck or back

problem.

.orangeconeswillbeplacedatkeyintersections.

. ,,Caution: Runners in the Road" signs will be placed at key locations on

course.

. 1 EMT will be stationed at the finish line and another EMT will rove the

2.



3.

courseonbicycle;bothwillhavecellphonesand/or2-wayradiosfor
communications'

.PubliclandlinelocationswillbegiventocoursevolunteersaSan
additional communication source'

. A water station will be available on the course and two in the finish area'

.Suspiciousorunattendedbagswillbeidentifiedandinformationrelayed
to BSIM Director Doug rnursion or Race Director susan Love for

Possible action bY Carmel PD'

EmergencY Plan Personnel

ThedirectorscollaboratewithcarmelPoliceDepartment'thecityofcarmel'the
CountyofMontereyandtheCaliforniaHighwayPatrolinplanningtheevent.

Two EMTs will be present at the event, one at the finish area and the other

roving the course,l.l ul.vtre. eotiwiir o" 
"q'ipped 

with cell phones and/or 2-

way radios for communications " *"li 'i ' "p of the 5k and 2k courses' Both

wi, have emergency contact intormation with instructions to contact g'||1 first for

medical emergencies and then to .ontact susan Love and/or Doug Thurston'

lntersection volunteers will be given written cards with contact information and

emergency inrtruction. to (r I "arr 
gii in-ir'" event of an emergency' (2) block or

redirecttrafficasneededtoprotect*viru*"onlfi3loantintheroadway,(3)call
the roving EMf toi-assistanie and (4) noimo'e any injured participant who is

unconscious or may have a neck or back problem'

The chain of command for emergencies is as follows:

First, BSIM Executive Director Doug Thurston
Second, RNL Race Director Susan Love
Third, nNi Start Director/Legal Counsel.Doug Oldfield

Fourth, RNL Board Member Thompson Lange

lf the BSIM Executive Director is unavailable, the RNL Race Director should be

consulted. rt sne is unavailable, tnen tn" irtrr- Start DirectoriLegal Counsel

shourd be consurt"o, totto*"d by the designated Board Member'

EmergencY EquiPment

CarmelPDisactivelyinvolvedintheeventandcanSummonemergency

"quip."nt 
and personnel as needed'

4.



Keypersonnelwillbeequippedwithcellphones,2wayradiosandcontact
information. Emergency calls JrrrO be routed first to Doug Thurston and' if

unavailable, to Susan Love'
3 or more trucks are used during the event and are available as needed'

The Race Director and others will have access to a bull horn and/or amplification

equipmenttomakeannouncementsincludingemergencyinstructions.

5. Logistical Problems

A. Storm SafetY Plan

At the discretion of the Race Director, the start of the event may be delayed up to

t hour or cancelled if any of tne iollowing conditions exist: thunderstorm/lightning'
"heavY" rain or other emergency'

lntheeventofinclementweather,eventregistrationandpacketpickupwillbe
moved indoors at Sunset center. ln the discretion of the Race Director or start

Director, prtti"iprnt may seek protection in carpenter Hall at Sunset center'

Portable tents be assembled at the start and finish areas as needed'

B. Back UP Personnel

Each director should identify and cross-train another person as a replacement if

the director is unable to attend the event due to illness or injury'

C. Back UP Vehicles

Three or more trucks are used during the event and are available as needed if a

truck has mechanical difficulties'

6. Follow UP

After the event, a directors' meeting will be held to assess issues and to identify

areas in need of improvement. The agreed-upon improvements will be

incorPorated into the next event'

Feedback should also be encouraged from participants and discussed at the

directors' meeting.

7. Conclusion

This emergency action plan outlines the risk assessment and emergency plan,



itemizesemergencypreventionandtraining,identifiestheemergenoypersonnel
and emerg"nry.oi.,ilunication, ,no'frii"l.es togisticat probrems that can atse

before and durinsiil';;;;f ilit pr'I it ' suidelinL'and each emersencv

situation will be #;i;lc"oroing t"'in. p'"*ioers tevet ot training and dealt

;iil; a case-bY-case basis'

\
"th



MEDICAL PLAN

An emergency vehicle is provided by the Monterey Firefighters Association; two Emergency

MedicalTechnicians are present and stationed at the finish line area with easy access to Ocean

Avenue. The location is indicated on the Del Mar Parking Lot map. An EMT on bike patrols the

course and is prepared to assist participants and volunteers in the case of an emergency' All

volunteers and committee members are provided with an emergency phone card, phone

numbers, and instructions. Additional bike marshals patrolthe course to insure the safety of

the participants.

/1



City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

application if necessarY'
See attached

nccrsstelLlw PLAN te and Federal

, if ^6.acc, rV

accessrequirements'Youmayattachmoredetailedinformationifnecessary.

XYesilNoWilltherebeanaccessibleClearPathofTravelthroughoutyoureventvenue?Pleasedescribe:

Road wirr remain open and carmer porice officers wiil man the barricades in case the two designated barriers require

removal.

ilvesXNoHaveyoudevelopedaDisabledparkingand/orTransportationPlan(inc|udingtheuseofshuttle
services) for your event? lf yes' please describe:

Euo wi, a, signage be praced so pedestrian frow wi, not obstruct its visibi'ty. prease describe'

Xves
Note:

Previously described in Access Plan

. es representatives be available to

EVes XNo lf an information center is provided at your event will customer servlc

assist disabled individuals? lf yes' please describe:



EyesEtrtolfallareasofyoureventVenuecannotbe
available to show the location of accessible rest rooms'

describe. N/A

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

made accessible will maps, programs, or information be made

parking, drinking fountains' and first aid stations? Please

Parking andlor shuttle ph,r, lf y*flease describe (or provide an

attachment of Your Plan)'

SAFETY EqUIPMENT

XVes Itto Will your event involve the use of traffic safety equipment? lf yes, Please list all equiPment'

DepartmenttoenSuresafetyatdeemedlocations

Equipment: garricades to be praced at san iaitos & g,h, oorores i t;;, i.*,. & gth, Dorores & 9th' Dolores & 10th' san

Carlos & 1Oth.

XvesnNoArethereanyamplifiedsoundand/ormusicalentertainmentfeatures:":::]:l::::::::::XYes t-lNo Are LI

complete the folrowing information or provide an attachment [sting ail band/performers' type of broadcast or type of

music, sound check and performance schedule'

Number of Stages: Two' one platform at the start line

Location of Stage(s): 1' Sunset Center courtyard

2' Base of Ocean Avenue' parking lot {refer to map)

NumberofPerformers/Bands:(Refertomaps)

Recorded music at the start - Sunset Center

Race announcements at the oarktns lot'Announcerlrerrl> dL ;fi;a6'music type(s):"

nvesXruoWillsoundchecksbeconductedpriortotheevent?Compliancewasmetinprioryears

XYes nruo

Enu nPv Finish time: Enu DPvt
lf yes, start time:

Willsound amPlification be used?

lf yes, start time: Sunset Center 7:15 AM' Del Mar 8:45 AM

Finish time: Sunset Centr 8:40 AM' Del Mar 10:45 AM

Doyouplantohaveapatrondancecomponenttoeitherliveorrecordedmusicatyourevent?
7

a

[Yes Xr'lo



lf yes, Please describe:

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

prease describethe sound equipmentthatwi, be usedforyourevent. rncrude howthe sound equipmentwill be used'

location(s) of the 'o'nJ "q'ip'"nt 
anO frow the equipment will be powered:

Two small 2-speaker PA systems (music in iPods)

ilves Xruo Does your event involve the use of alcoholic beverages?

lf yes, then please check all that apply:

fl Free/Host Alcohol

E Beer

fl Beer and Wine

E Beer, Wine and Distilled SPirits

please descrlbe your security plan to ensure the safe sales or distribution of alcohol at your event:

Xves Duo Does your event include food concession and/or preparation areas? lf yes' please describe how food will

be served and/or PrePared:
prepackageo, ,oonrofJa=rloa i, provided for our participants. Distributed by voruneers at Del Mar parking lot'

,s

T



City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

area? lf yes, please specify method(s) and all equipment that
Dyes Xruo Do you intend to cook food in the event

will be used:

MERCHANDISE

[ves X*o will items or services be sold at your event? lf yes, attach a complete list of vendors and describe the

items or services they will be providing:

PORTABLE REST ROOMS

require portoble restrooms at ony event, The number ond type will be determined by city staff'

lf No, please exPlain:

l l0 at finish

Xyes Et1o Do you plan to provide portable rest room facilities at your event? Note: the City reserves the right to

Number of ADA accessible portable toilets:

Portable Restroom Company Name: Golden State Portables

Address:

Telephone: DaY: 831-757-8203

Equipment SetuP:

Equipment PickuP:

Evening:

Date: 6h9

Date: 6/20

Time:5:00

Time:

XAM EPM

XAM NPM

ge during and after your event. lnclude

the number of dumpsters, trash cans, recycling containers, and a plan for waste stream diversion' Per Municipal code

section g.74, the use of single-use carryout ptastlc bags is prohibited at any special event. Additionally, cups, plates, or

any type of food or liquid containers made of styrofoam are not permitted.



SANITATION AND RECYCLING

Ten trash and 10 recycling containers are provided by the Big Sur Marathon' They distributed

and monitored by committee members, returned to the marathon's warehouse following the

event. Gr'e€n Waste delivers two 4-yarddumpsters at the base of Ocean Avenue on Friday'

prior to the event, and pick them up on the following Monday morning' Refer to the finish area

map for exact location.



City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

jee \u-\ i-*-\6r-,- \-v-\t-fl
Location(s) of dumpsters, trash cans, recycling containers:

Waste Company Name: Green Waste (previ'

Address: P.O. Box l-928, Marina, CA 93933

mer

Evening: nl Cell:n/a

Time:

Time:

3:00

Fax: 831.883.9218Telephone: Day: 831.920.6707

Equipment SetuP:

Equipment PickuP:

Date:

Date:

6lL7

6/20

ERrv xPw

XAM lPM

MITIGATION OF IMPACT

Xyes nNo Have you met with the residents, businesses and other entities that may be directly impacted by your

event? lf yes, please attach a complete list of these entities' lf no, please explain: see attached

I&es Eruo Do you have a sample of the notice that you propose to distribute two weeks prior to your event?

lf yes, please attach. lf no, please explain:
The attached letter was distributed last year, as in the past five years. lt will be revised and distributed for 2015'

I NSU RANCE REQU IREM ENTS
nDollars(s1,0oo,ooo)ormore.ALLpropertyand

-- -r^- -^l:-.
locations that are to be utilized / insured must be listed and reflect the city's interest in the insured property' The policy

must read as follows: The city of carmel-by-the-Sea, its public officials, officers, agents, and employees are names as

additionally insured in respect to <EVENT> on <DATE>. This information is typed in the "Description of

operations/Locations/vehicles/Exclusions Added by Endorsement/special Provisions. A separate, "Additionally lnsured"

endorsement page, with the same wording as above, is also required. lf applicable, Proof of workers compensation is

also required. The policy must specify commencement and expiration dates for coverage of the event. NAME/ADDRESS

the Certificate of Liability/Additional ly insured Endorsement'
Please attach a copy of your proof of insurance to this document.

.xo



MITIGATION OF IMPACT

Accompanying this application is an acknowledgement from the only two "businesses" affected
by the event. Their letters of support are attached.

As discussed and agreed upon last year, it is not possible to survey the affected residents.
However, as stated by the Carmel Police Department, there has never been a complaint issued
by any resident during the past four years. They have always been notified in advance and
welcomed to call with questions or concerns. Residents have been extremely supportive and
accepting of the event; many have participated.



Aprt19.':ot5

R.E: Run in the liame of Love Event

'fo !!'hom tt iltry Concern:

ThLq letter is in regards to lhe Run in the Name of Love Evetlt. In the past. rve have not had any' issues
rrith the elent Dr its par'ticipants.

If 1.r;u hare anl. further questions or coocerns, please t'eel hee to contact me al 83t-6:-+-6-+36 Lrt. z75o'
Or via emaii me at Luc]'ti?'missionranchc:trmel.c,-rm

Sincerelr,

. n \an ,

Ytl*+ W,tt'-
Luqv* Tran
Hu.man Resou rces .v-lana ge r



C.'tRitrlEL ,!lISSI0N
[,.,\..-.:I i_. ,.\

April 8, 2015

Susan Love
Big Sur Marathon

Susa n,

I wanted to let you know that Run in the Nome o! Love has never adversely affected your Sunday

Masses and we have never received any complaints from staff, guests or parishioners during the past

four years. We at the Carmel Mission Basilica are big supporters of this positive community event. Thank

you for allyou do for the community.

Regards,

Nicki Pasculli
Coordinator of Pilgrim & Guest Services
Carmel Mission Basilica
3080 Rio Road
Carmel, CA 93923
(831) 624-1277X 274
nicki @ca rme lmission.org

-.. l-



fr?/

Big Sur lnternational Marathon
P.O. Box 222620, Carmel, CA93922

Dear Carmel-by-the-Sea Neighbor, May,2015

The fifth annual Run in the Name of Love will be held on Father's Day, June 21st. Participants

from our community, and many visitors from out of town, will have the opportunity to enjoy our

area, the magnificent course, and a morning of fitness, family and fun'

This highly acclaimed event is possible due to our generous sponsors, enthusiastic volunteers' a

diligenicommittee and the unanimous approval of Carmel-by-the -Sea.

The original Run in the Name of Love was held at the University of Virginia to memoriahze an

outstanding young man from Carmel, Brian Love, who died in a tragic snowboarding accident

during team practice. With determination, his mother moved "Brian's" race from Charlottsville
to his hometown. Having expanded in scope, all participants are encouraged to "Run in the

Name" of someone theY love.

The event is under the umbrella of the Big Sur Marathon and the proceeds will benefit its youth

fitness program JUST RI-IN'

ihe festivities will begn at Sunset Center at approximately 7:30 AM, followed by the race at 8:30,

and conclude at Del Mar parking Lot where the Finish celebration will take place. Participants will
be heading south towards Carmel Mission, reach Carmel Point, and f,rnish along Scenic Drive at

Eighth Avenue. Runners and walkers will be finished by 10:00 AM and the parking lot will re-

open to the public at 1 1:30 AM.

The city will be posting No Parking-Tow Away notices 48 hours in advance in the areas

impacted by the ivent. There will be no road closures but there will be short delays and several

detours. There will be music and announcements at the start and the parking lot finish area with
low volume amplified sound. However, the speakers will be pointed away from residences and

the duration will be short in both of these areas'

we encourage you to register and to participate in what promises to be a quality and memorable

event. Thank you for yorr rrpport, understanding, and patlence on Sunday the 21st!

we welcome any questions or concems; please call us at 625-6226

With appreciation,

futulak
Susan Love
Race/Event Director

Doug Thurston - Executive Director
Big Sur International Marathon'l-:

L



City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Special Event Permit Application

AFFTDAVTT OF APPLICANT(S)
Note: This AFFIDAVIT OF APPLICANT(S) must be slgned by all parties, including applicant(s) and all service providers
(including, but not limited to, any and all caterers, event planners, and contractors/vendors that will provide support
services for and/or at the event).

I certify that the information contained in the foregoing application is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and
that I have read, understand and agree to abide by the rules and regulations governing the proposed Special Event
under the Carmel-by-the-Sea Municipal Code. I understand that this application is made subject to the rules and
regulations established by the City Council and/or the City Administrator or the City Administrator's deslgnee. I agree to
comply with any other requirements of the City, County, State, FederalGovernment, and any other applicable entity
which may pertain to the conduct of the Event. I agree to abide by these rules, and further certify that l, on behalf of the
Host Organization, am also authorized to commit that organization, and therefore agree to be financially responsible for
any costs and fees that may be incurred by or on behalf of the Event to the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea. I understond that
submitting this opplicotion octs os o request, not o guorantee.

1. Susan W. Love

Signature

2. Mike Banda

Print Name of Event Organizer/Applicant

Print Name of Service Provider

Golden State Portables
Business Name

Signature

3. Green Waste
Print Name of Service Provider

Business Name

Signature

4. Greg Richards

Date

Print Name of Service Provider

South Valley Endurance, Timing Company
Business Name

Signature

\7

Date

r



City of Curmel-by-the-S eu
coMr"tuHtrv pLANNtNG AND BUILDING DEPARTMENT

POST OFFICE DRAWER G
CARMEL-BY.THE.SEA' CA 9392I

","'],i?H-lt',fIIf '
February 19,2015

Susan Love
Big Sur Marathon
PO Box 222620
Carmel, CA93922

RE: Planning Commission Decision
Design Review Application: DR 14-34 (Run in the Name of Love)
Del Mar Parking Lot
Blk: n/a, Lot rt/a; APN: n/a (City Right-of-Way)

Dear Susan:

The planning Commission approved your Design Review (DR 14-34) application and the
associated Coastal Development Permit with amended conditions of approval on January 14,

2015. Staff has enclosed a copy of the final conditions of approval for you to sign and return for
the City's records.

This Design Review is valid for an initial term of five years, with the possibility of being
extended opoo u check-in review by the Planning Commission after the fifth year of the event, or
in late 2019.

This approval is subject to a 10-working day City appeal period. Because this project is located
in the Coastal Commission's Appeal Jurisdiction, it is also subject to a subsequent lO-working
day appeal period that starts when the Coastal Commission staff receive the Final Local Action
Noti"", which will be mailed out by City staff by separate letter. The City's appeal period ended

on Thursday, January 29, 2015, and no appeals of the Planning Commission decision were
received. The Coastal Commission's appeal period is estimated to begin on February 23,2015,
or possibly earlier. Coastal Commission staff will notify City Community Planning and Building
staff if an appeal is received by their office.

please review, sign, and return a signed copy of the attached Final Conditions of Approval to this
office. Atl appli,cable conditions of approval for the Planning permit must be met and will be

reviewed by Planning Division staff prior to commencement of the event.

please contact me at (831) 620-2057, if you have any questions regarding the post-approval
process. Thank you.



/1,-r-rr, c{'if"r. g',""iT i;-

Big Sur lnternational Marathon
P.O. Box 222620, Carmel, CA93922

REQUEST FOR FEE WAIVER

REQUEST FOR CO.SPONSORSHIP WITH CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA

o SCOPEOFTHE EVENT
o PROPOSED 2016 BUDGET
r FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FROM 2013,2A14, AND 2015
. ECONOMIC IMPACT ON THE COMMUNITY
. OVERALL IMPACT ON THE COMMUNITY
r BIG SUR MARATHON CONTRIBUTIONS TO ORGANIZATIONS WITHIN THE 93921

ZIP CODE AREA

a,'"1



SCOPE OF THE EVENT - RUN IN THE NAME OF LOVE

The Big Sur lnternational Marathon will once again orchestrate and present to our community
thesixthannual RunintheNameofLove. Deemed"oneofthepremiereventsinCarmel-by-
the-Sea," this unique event affords runners and walkers the opportunity to honor or to pay
tribute to someone who is or was a very special person in their lives. Participants enjoy the
charm of the area, historic sites, the natural beauty of the course (including views of sandy,
white beaches, the dramatic Pacific Ocean, Point Lobos, and Pebble Beach), and a memorable
finish celebration.

Run in the Name of Love is scheduled for June Lgth,IOLG and is composed of a 5K run and a 2K
walk. Dogs will be permitted in the Walk. The start is staged in the courtyard at Carmel-by-the-
Sea's Sunset Center on San Carlos and end on Scenic Road at Ocean Avenue. The set-up begins
at 5:30 AM. The 5K, with an expected number of 800 participants, will begin at 8:30 AM and
the 2K, with an expected number of 200 participants, will begin at 8:40 AM. As in the past five
years, the finish celebration (awards, raffle, and refreshments) will be located in the Del Mar
Parking Lot. Set-up of the announcer platform, tables, porta-potties, fencing, and tents has
begun at approximately 4:30 AM. The timing system company has arrived at 7:00 to prepare
and to set-up their equipment. At 10:50 AM the race organizers and the Military from DLI will
begin to dismantle the equipment, remove all items and insure that the parking lot is left in a
pristine condition. The parking lot will reopen to the public at 11:30.

Course maps are attached.

Proceeds will benefit the Big Sur Marathon's highly acclaimed youth fitness program JUST RUN.

)Z



REVENUE
5K Race Entry Fees (800 @ S40)
2K Race Entry Fees {200 @ S35)
Sponsorships
Expected Profit from Dog Shirts

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES

City Fees/Parking Lot Fees
Timing Company
Awards
Finisher Medallions - Surplus from 2O'J.4

Shirts - Participant and Volunteer
Porta Poties and Fencing
RRCA lnsurance
Wesite and Domain Fees
Printing and Postage
Ma rketing and Advertising
Signage/Banners
Committee Refreshments
Pa rticipa nt Refreshments
Food Bags
Medical
Announcer/So u nd Systems
Truck Rental
Trash Containers
Table Rentals
Monterey County Permit
Dog Bandanas/Printing
Dog Shirts
Misc.
BSIM Staff Overtime

TOTAL EXPENSES

RUN IN THE NAME OF LOVE
ESTIMATED BUDGET

2016

s 32,ooo
s 7,000
s 7,500s 2so

s 46,750

5,425
2,1,0O

500
1,000
5,200
2,100

560
200
625

2,200
650
250
400
375

50
750
500
200

25,385

300
2s0
500
500
750

2 ..">1

EXPECTED PROFIT (tOO% to JUST RUN) 21,365



I NCOME/EXPENSES/PROFIT: 2013,2014,2015

38710.91

20552.84

18158.07

34160.00

21925.72

12234.28

33567.00

19842.29

13724.71

2013 RITNL

Contri butions/Sponsors

Entry Fees

Direct Expenses

2014 RITNL

Contributions/Sponsors

Entry Fees

Direct Expenses

2015 RITNL

Contributions/Sponsors

Entry Fees

1697449

21736.42

13187.00

20973.00

1 1930.00

21637.00

Direct Expenses

{*' )



o
o)
ft,
o-

a
f.-o-
(o

O)

+
F-
(o

oq

o) o) o) o) o) o)aaqnaqo)o)F-F@sl@co(ocoo)F.o)-o- o_l @- d)-
c-J$|r)Ft(O

6)OOOOOgqqqqq
O)O@O-(O@OF-NFl..
or- o- ,-: F- o_
NN (O(r)N

x.tr.Ex.t t!rL!!I!!!!!!ooaooa(o(E(u(,(\,(Eoooooo
(\NNc,lC.lNoooooc)oooooo

oo
s
Go

o
o

o,
E
IEz

El * i * | r '

=!
o,o

al,

:o

o
E
o,

=,

o

E Rgg URo{a
= >?tc E
t tl,=.9cd
E.9E
.g HttrOo: c<
=!E(,)F
E"
iE

6

ES----* E.eR55555 PElc!sssq 
=!l(ocOeOFO t'-^\NOd)(O(9 z-r-U<\\\\ V

EFN(f)sf r$(o Oo>o_9
OL
o(ocu(u6(!(! rLJEEEEEE c
!lf ,f f f :eoooooo illL---a-- -
EEErE-66G o,ib6bbbb er
. (l)(l)(I)OO(I)Roooooo E i$F5

F

E)z

o,
(go

co(oo$coeC!C{cO(r)r)

6'6
fil
!q

6-eFGo-;P
9 BEtl O< ,lt

4

a)

F



d,o,t!

:ll
$ll
"ll

Nl$
(oL
N-l
N

I
l
i

I

NI<l
FI(oiNI-lN'Ni

I

I
I

ooocoNqqqqqa
roooolr)(oNNCoCooc"
'r) o)_ryN-\\

Ftr)SSF N

ooo Nqqq arolr)cNO)F c,rioo O
Jo F-

G.t tr x.t x.LL).L!L
aaa6ao(o(!CO(!(,(E(-)()OOOC)

NNNOIN$Ioc)oooooooooo

oa
aF
,.Y (g9a

c,o
s
(E
trl

o)

o

o
ri
N6

ooqqo()ONlr)
lt(,
q

.D

ql
-loi

o
Eo
=

(,
oz

Eaz
I --I coo)i (o(oI (ooslc\tN@I NcocoNe{c')

t,i --(-,.').')(e E
I 

-FFeeF 
rr: l,)oooooo *

i ONNNNC\IN -1.9=ts>-ab F
-ooco-r(9 ,'iiIBe-b.-668 :
->,E 9lo,l>o]:EEE q I1o656 o FLl!--- - -t-_--l:HHH;xH Elscccooc lI dr(l)o)EEo,rBCr(9oooo E 1$ FEoF

o,
(so

C'a

(v)

o(\
dc)
oft
Eo
o-oo
o
o

*,
ooo

.ct
a
o
o
Go
G'l-F

o

o
(r
L
G5
G'

o
(E

(,

o
tr)
o

.-l
E'L<l

.9o(E
co

= P;r--=
E SE\tO< ll r'\ -Lr-d



o
6)
(g

o-

N o cO CO lr) o @ N F @ F Cal S (o € g, E !? s| sf (O e{ cO C{ (O rr) (f) O O I- N F-
id 5 = 6 A5 ; 6 rrj co 6 F- N d o, 6 O o o o i F N c'I o $ $ to co co O 9) F-
65:=*o<i666ioiri6666FFFFF FNF NF r''F F-F-F co

= .( N N N N (\I $I N fi N N N - C.' N N qI q{ q N N O{ N N N N C.I q.I N N N
N i.i ili N ili N N c'i si c'i N N N c.i N c'i N N N N N N N N c.l c\l N N ol N N N

I- d)..,(o., (',.')(ococrr.,cocy)(oco..)(',(r)(r) (r) - -. .^ co(oco..Jc?i? Ealaj-F-6 eeFF FeF(Y)(rlco!EEirF a
.- XE -t b b bI b b c o oo oo oQ 9Qo o o F - - o o o oo o c
q? =i( ba( N N o,l o c.r fi di a( N N N N N N N s'l N N c-l o o o N l'r s'r s't tl c'r o
E^cN-XE NRHSPilNFPPFFFN $$FR R $$-PT RERN S
E =:\;; >;H i6 ii a'D o-b 6 E 6 66 b 6 b .a E .o F '- tr N- r- tr trF- a ;stXOI,IJ J
crgto6lr
-JCLfOE
lJ.
c . !evv--- H;rrrrr6ErErri66Ennitnnni nniii!{'ao xr* if d 6i[iD 6 6 6 6 6 6 66 66000 Aq 6 o 6 oooo o 0' oroo ):. = = = - 7 = F F E F F EEEEEE.c,.c, iEEEEE,EEiCEEC *
S6O6OOoOoOOOOOOOoooooooc;ooooooot-lcl o )$,ES(ob

F

q
Nnlr)
N

:

O O O O r F F- v t @ @ $ r r) Ct CO cO @ (9 C)l () F 6 O (O (O (O O) o) o) Cr) $
Ei 5 5 5 o o i: co <cl ; : ai io .i ij - i Lr: - C - co o - N N N .4 rn c) r'-',
o d d rrj c"j - 16j rj o o - c.j s ; e,rf A q Q S o oi c; o \ .o i A A i S i!5 5 5 . (c) oo o (b or o co oi : N'b d - - + |r) = N o @'o'r)'o Q c \ Q tQ
6 < 5 b F 6 6 o Lrl ; c'i + o d o l- Lrl ; ct <- .o^ co- r- 1 .rl- N- o>- .c. N-':o- r-r- tr:-"' - 

=:-.j*-; J +-' "; ;;'; ;- - ap g p g g f f f f f 
= 

a 
= 

ad"i
I
l

I i::::::;::::::::::. t t t t Ex.r.t x.it tr x.t vt xt x.t qil'444q44q't tr't'
=: : :::: :II EZEE71 i iI EE -e 4 4qq q+E4 E 46 a a a a o a oAiAA a 6 a t4 q qi a 6 a a o a a a a a a 6 a

= 6trfi tr666dftjtrtrii6ff 66dGtororsco5c8turoq.qts6cor!E ci ci 5 d d d o d d d d o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o oot -
I s, c, NN N N N NN N N c'{ NN N Nryq. N N N N c\N Nol N ql ql c{N N| 5 d 55 d 5 5 CU dU d c 5 ci 5a ado 5 c - o oQ I ? I cc c
| 55 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 -. -- -- - - o o o o o o o oo o o

rJol

: i : i : .i.i d :o- .> si$. 5 o,3S bqFc? 5 uro.E e,-,= .q:i ;Sd6 ri

e =*ess E pss EflE€E s;;s; rEsgrssE
Ee ggs E:t;HSEE Ea;p:s Es s;asssEssrfr

o
Gz

o

oo

o
U

q,o

$
oq
c-.1lr)
tr)-

N

oo O O F O (.o F- O v o (O F N O O eaa q) r) .o F N .oOOo ? ? 5f -56 5 5 o 5 6 or o rrr 5 F i\ rr) - -- t'r,Q S R q q Aq q': q q F: -
d d cj,rj d d rrj oj rj rj rj c.i - cci rj oj d r c'l Lp 

= @ iD trl c o rr: t ? Q N'o
o 3 c F <r e - co <v - sl id N 5 5 ni 6 q ; C .o - N'o O (o N N c (o F (o
6&5 i;F(oou:oiELrj6 ;-r-.tO--NFNN vFN(o-(oF

-j(r)rl)r

o
=

(f)

o6{
d
(f)

olt
E
o,
o-oo
o
ah

{-,

o(J()

lt
o
o*,o
(Eo
GLF

O

o
cl
(\,

G
o
(E

o

a
cD
dl

Ei<I

ts

z

o
Go

D
ar!a

<tI.!-eFd
6i(Yti;?;6sto< t)ti

o



o,
o)
G
o-q

F
@

-i

oq
N
@

CO

o
O

oooooooccqqgcqNcoN1..1..c.lFcococ\$o)rocor \(r)-O-O-11
N(OFNc')

oooooooqqqqqqq
N(o$lr)0toto@octNlr)|r)cr)r tO_ (O- t-,- O) r-

NO+

q)
o
!
co

.=
1C
tu

C)

o,o

t tr t x.t.x.tr
aooaooo(olE(E6(g6(gooooooc)

OINOINNNNoooooooooooooo

eo

-lol

o
E
o,

=

o
Gz

d

E P:g URo{a
=>P=.cr 6
! aF.9tr6H OE
-EH8s HrCOo: c<
=F(/)F,
.9o

?, 1<l

z (oo)oocr)co
-F-NOt(o(r) o

6d) .9!-sttsf<fslt =.eR555555 €5=s!s!s!s!s!s :
!l(Y)@FOFOF .
'-^\N(f)(')(?)f)f) r-r
E-c!(.)strr)(OF- o)o>(J-3
o
O(E(E(E(go(o(E trJ-cEEEEEE c
=))JJ)))Jeooooooo rYl!--aar-- -

=EEEEEEE e.;ooooooo ^N. ooooooo \
RoooOoOo 6 JE6s!r-5

F

o
(!o

o,o.

.96
IE

@
1-6CL;P
oFnC BEslo< il{}



(l,
5)
(E
o-ollcllollts11d)ll

oll*ll

ll

oodssf-
6t

q
co
Fro-
N

co$

C.l

o
d
F-
=l

oocoooooqqqqqqqq
rf)ooootr)ro-)cqNo$$oc0l.-
co o- r_ o- sf. t- co- ol-

FNtr)|olr)rr)C)
N

oooo oqqqq q1r)lr)00 6cf)0(r)0, oco (o -(o- @-
F(o tr)

Itil::::trtx.x.ttrdv
oaooaaoo(6(E(I,(\,6(E(u(!
OOOOOOOC)
.INNNNNCNNoooooooooooooooo

o
FO
E5
=co3x

!.- LO FE
o:<

C)o

Go

o,
o

oodFt

ooocccoLr)oocos
=il(t,o

o(oo)ro (o (oooo(oorcoo)$s.fmTTNNNNC!c,

ol

o

o
o
=

o
E
aqz

E
z

q,
Go

o

E 9:g URo{a
= >PEOE
E EE
.E L' CL

=E3s HttrOa: c<
=!EaE
o)'
iE

!,<l

6
$<ft$s<$:t E

ooooooooo *
ricO-O--CO(OO V
-No(f)COFFFcO ,:''i
;''N rr g 'n (o (o (D (o 

oJc>r.rJ _9
Og
O6606 (' LJEEEE E c
eoooo o itl-rra- - -5EEEE,--E iPOOOOoooo --ccctro(r}oc.a. oJot oOrEcO Y

BoooC,oooo E J
=-F o

oq

.9o
G

r06-1-GEL;P
oeiiI bEil o<



o
o,
(E
0-

xHHnnRnsestss=sH==xH===s=:xsExSlsi=
+s-t$<qs ss$<na$$9fs$sts 9<'sts<'s< U

HEEHEEEfiE*E**EEEEEEsEEEEEEFFEEEEE:$E ExcUJo -b>(oLLq E;==b g(
IL
c vvvwlvvv---P I
iIeeEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEETEEEEEiEEPEE E p P H B

SOO.,oooo,.,"55665555556OOOO5o-ooo6565c5 " )
N 

JVVV 
E f,."P

N
F.
lrjN
.

q

8838 N5 5 se sE8 3E S3 =N 6N* 5 335 3\ 63?35 aan-
RsHr +; s$[ieH qe.iqqtifl3$331q*iriFEgE[

r r NN :D ca co oJ o o) c'iN c7) o-' lr) r) 00 r" x N N 3 3 C C O F F t

8 E E E N fl 8 E E E \ q s q 
-d -E n 

= 
II s E 3 + I b R 5 s s 3 t 3 8 18

gFE=nsEEsEiEEFKK!iilUHxxtp:ip*fi HEE-3+
.rlciNN

u. v vi t t t t i x. x. x t r. r. t q + +4 + q + q + + q + + + + \Y+ i
ssssssssssssssssSSssSSsSssssssssss!
eP=AEg=FHEEEpEH=EEEFHFEpEBEEEEEEFEF

q)o
g
(go

=ooo

o
()

N\
u')
N
o)-

i:i: :'j::o- 3: qe€ r EE P6;. OE .E.E^6 =e93 y e,5*

=Eies;sscs=Eg:Es#uE3;iEs 
EiEP BE!

;E EEsiSss ger;3s s ;l EE $ Es sasgIsgEsI=

ga
a= o

i or
E ER io{a
E! IT9! atr ELr-=0,L9<

E.9-BiXu)s ErtrOo- c<
=tuai HE"2
iE

E'I

I

:zl
i

o,
(!o

o
F

6
'-o
!EglE 3=o---j

I AEslo<



12t18t2015

Itemized Categories
10 I 1 1201 4 through I 130 1201 5

Description Clr Amount
Page 1

Date Tag

INCOME
4020 Run in Name of Love Contributions
4438 Run For Love Entry Fees

EXPENSES
6202 Run For Love Expenses

11t4t2014
1t1t2015
2t1912015
3trtrols
3t5t2015
3t9t2015
3t16t2015
3t31t2015
4t812015
4114t2015
4t14t2015
4t28t2015
4t2gt2o15
5t8t2015
5t2912015

6t2t2015
6t3t2015
6t1012015
6t13t2015
6t1312015
aitsrists
6t13t2015
6t22t2015
atzztzots
6t2212015
6t2412015
aizqrinls
6t3U2A15
6t3012015
a,tiolzots
7t14t2015
7t14t2015
1it+tzots
7t15t2015
7t15t2015
8t1stiol5
9t16t2015
9t17t2415

33,567.00
11,930.00
2',1,637.00

-19,842.29
-'19,842.29

-361.65
-357.00
-200.00

-38.24
-343.00
-200.00
-300.00

-36.28
-300.00
-zso.oo
-139.64

-20.00
-16.33

-1,372.00
-140.58

-80.67
-3,228.50

-500.00
-668.04
-333.27

0.00
-154.83

-1,850.00
-300.00
-162.65

-1,925.15
-435.90
-436.98
-291.00
-297.27
-251.99
-106.73
-678.00

-1,644.23
-2,054.09

-169.00
-1.48

-173.84
-23.95

City Of Carmel-BY-The-Sea
Monterey County Weekly
Keri Marion
Susan W. Love
Capital One
Keri Marion
County Of Monterey Dept. Of Publi.
Capital One
Adventure Sports
Competitor Group lnc.
Mike_Dove
Susan Love
Capital One
City Of Carmel-BY-The-Sea
Capital One

Moshay, lnc.
Competitor Group lnc.
Monterey Signs
Geiger
**VOID**West Coast Print #001
Fishion Streaks
West Coast Print #001
Brent Allen
Doug Thurston
South Valley Endurance, LLC
Susan Love
Pacific Etched Glass & Crysial
Carmel Pine Cone
Penske Truck Leasing Co., L.P.
Penske Truck Leasing Co., L.P.
ATo Z Rentals
Carmel Pine Cone
CotOen State PortaOtes
Geiger
Offset Project
Active Network
Julie W. Armstrong
Kevin Smith

p
b

I

I

b

I

S

):'i

OVERALL TOTAL 13,724.71



CRITERIA

For the first time following the Run in the Name of Love event, we conducted a post-race
survey of the participants. Significantly:

ll.5% purchased food or beverages at a Carmel restaurant or coffee establishment
44.8% purchased souvenirs, merchandise or services in Carmel
89.6% brought someone with them
45% ranlwalked as a tribute to a loved one
32.5% traveled to the area specifically for the event
83.7%are "very likely" to participate in this event (most of the others because of
distance).
All areas of event orchestration received a 1 point something rating, based on L

being excellent.

Our goals for Run in the Name of Love are to showcase Carmel-by-the-Sea, offer a sporting
event for the community and visitors of all ages, and to have a positive economic impact on our
local shops, restaurants, and inns. Duringthe 2015 event, 15 states,5 foreign countries and
over 50 crties were represented. We are anticipating 800 to 1,000 participants this year and,
again, many will have numerous friends and family members accompanying them.

The feedback from city businesses has been overwhelmingly positive. Shops and restaurants
are frequented and many of the out of town participants make a vacation weekend out of the
event. Many of our runners and walker now make Run in the Name of Love an annual evenU
some will be returning for their sixth year. This event clearly brings people to Carmel-by-the-
Sea.

"Just a comment I want to send you. I walked around Carmel a lot with
my family after and wore the RNL shirt and in 3 different stores in Carmel either
a salesperson or owner said something similar, "we've seen a lot of people today
walking around in those shirts." I also saw a lot of people with RNL shirts or race
numbers on eating in local restaurants. All outside- beautiful day afterthe
race-" Michael D. Salinas participant

The free raffle prizes are a highlight of the finish celebration. Publicity is afforded to our raffle
donors: all who are local business owners. They are publically thanked at our awards
ceremony, on our website and in the newspaper (see attached) and the participants have
continued to patronize their businesses.

Most of our sponsors are local and they have profited by the exposure on our website, in the
media, and on race day.

Carmel-by-the-Sea has been greatly promoted by the event. Carmel is showcased in thousands
of postcards distributed up and down the coast of California as well as in advertisements and

lr!
l4 r.



magazines, newspapers and radio and TV. The Run in the Name of Love website displays
beautiful photos of Carmel.

This past year, Carmel-by-the-Sea has been given a Platinum sponsor designation in exchange
for valuable fee waivers. The benefits included listing Carmel-by-the-Sea on the participant
shirts, a link on our website, and acknowledgements many times during pre- and post-event
ceremonies. We have been very proud to have had Carmel's support and its commitment to
bringing Run in the Name of Love to our community during the past five years. We would be

honored to have Carmel remain on our list of Carmel sponsors and donors.

The organizing committee is composed solely of volunteers, committed to the goals and
purpose of Run in the Name of Love and willing to work on behalf of this city and the positive
impact it has on our communitY.

The impact that this event has on our participants as they reflect upon and honor someone who
is or was a special person in their lives is moving. We hope that you can join us on June 19th to
see and appreciate what this event means to so many people. Many testimonials were
submitted to us in the post event survey. Some are attached.

Additionally, this event encourages participation in an athletic endeavor from all age groups.
Last year our youngest participant was 2, the oldest was 89. There is a 5K distance and a 2K

distance to ensure that almost anyone interested is capable of participating'

One hundred percent of the proceeds from Run in the Name of Love will be donated to the Big

Sur lnternational Marathon's youth fitness program JUST RUN. JUST RUN is free to all youth
organizations and schools. lt promotes physical activity, good citizenship, healthy eating, and
pride in accomplishment. The program relies on grants, donations, and sponsorships. JUST

RUN won the 2015 National Program of the Year award from Running USA, the trade
organization in running. Carmel's support identifies the City as a supporter of youth fitness and
a supporter of this highly acclaimed and effective program for children. We can think of no
greater cause.

According to the City's police department, there have been zero complaints from residents and
businesses during the past five years. We respect the guidelines and agreed-upon stipulations.
Residents along the course are hand-delivered letters and postcards explaining the event and
welcoming their comments and feedback. The impact of Run in the Name of Love is undeniably
positive.

The Coastal Commission's stipulation that we cannot conduct an auction or sell raffle tickets,
combined with the potential costs of the parking lot fees, equals a 56,000 negative financial
impact. Thus, we are requesting that the eligible fees be waived to support our efforts to
continually orchestrate Run in the Name of Love and to raise money for JUST RUN. We are
hopeful that Carmel-by-the-Sea will support us during our 2016 presentation and remain a co-
sponsor.

. l/2t '"



BIG SUR INTERNATIONAL MARATHON CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS TO

ORGANIZATIONSWITHINTHEg3g2l,Z|PCODEAREA
2012 - 201,5

American Red Cross

Carmel High Track & Field/Cross Country

Carmel Host Lion Club

Carmel Mission Catholic Youth Ministry

Carmel Mission Foundation

Junipero Serra School Washington Program

Knights of Columbus Carmel

s8,ooo

S3,3oo

Sz,tso

S6,+oo

S3,ooo

s12,0oo

S5,zoo

,1,>



A-f f nrfJ A,{ s.elf 3
ffi"t"d F*. f"r2Ot6 Run in the Name of Love

Eligible for a Fee Waiver

Run in the Name of Love

, -( 780.00

n-t*,.nE,oEiqlE{l) - -f - l^H!r}-.

Not Eligible for a

Fee Waiver

( 600.00

i on ortv-po-otri;tt (4 htrjqt) O $1Qlr"- ; --i )q 952.00
4 Vrr uvry r.v v!rivv'- \ _ -' A

riOOitio-n.r parninlofrqe!1lfslq1$e/hr '. ) 276.OO

2 city staff (a hrs) TBD

Note: Traffic cones will be provided by event

{gelLzer -f
s 4,052.00

5{


